P.O. Box 82 Weidman, Michigan 48893 989-644-8777 Email: <u>lakeojibwa20@gmail.com</u> Web Site: http://www.myopoa.com

THESE BYLAWS REPLACE ALL PREVIOUS BYLAWS 2021

NOTE: Ojibwa Property Owners Association Inc. shall furthermore hereon be referred to as OPOA.

ARTICLE I – INTRODUCTION

SECTION 1. OFFICE

The principal office of OPOA shall be located in the home of the active President, Isabella County, Michigan. OPOA shall have continuously maintained in the State of Michigan a registered office and a registered agent to comply with the Michigan law.

SECTION 2. COMMUNITY

- A) All reasonable means have been taken to ensure that residency in this community is safe, pleasant, and enjoyable. This property is privately owned. Community management is required by law to abide by certain standards. Many of these Rules and Regulations are based on the requirements of Michigan Law. The remainder is published to help assure the safety and protection of persons, property, and privacy of all. Consideration and courtesy to others, plus cooperation in maintaining an attractive home, will help sustain the high standard of this community.
- B) The following Rules and Regulations (Article VII section 3) are intended for the comfort, health, welfare, and safety of home owners, residents and visitors, and to maintain the appearance and reputation of this community. Cooperation is required and will be greatly appreciated

ARTICLE II – MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1. DEFINITION OF MEMBER

Every person or entity who owns an equity interest or undivided interest in any recorded lot in OPOA and any person owning an equitable interest in any land having riparian rights in OPOA whether land contract vender or fee holder and being subject to assessment by OPOA shall be a member of OPOA, provided that any such person who holds such interest merely as security shall not be a member.

SECTION 2. VOTING RIGHTS

A) Voting members shall be those as defined in Article II, Section 1. And have their dues paid up to date are "in good standing". When more than one person holds such interest in any lot, all such persons shall be members but one vote shall be permitted per lot, and such vote shall be exercised as the interest holders among themselves determine. No fractional votes will be allowed.

P.O. Box 82 Weidman, Michigan 48893 989-644-8777

Email: <u>lakeojibwa20@gmail.com</u>
Web Site: http://www.myopoa.com

SECTION 3. Rights and Privileges of Membership

- A) Every member in good standing of this association shall be entitled to participate in any meeting and vote of the following matters:
 - 1) Adoption and amendment of by-laws
 - 2) Sale, lease exchange, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or substantially all of the association's assets;
 - 3) Incurring, creating, or increasing bonded indebtedness;
 - 4) Increases or decreases of association capitalization or dues;
 - 5) Merger or consolidation of the association with another association or other association:
 - 6) Investment of association funds in another association; and
 - 7) Dissolution of the association.
 - 8) The use, enjoyment, and to benefit from, or take advantage of all facilities, amenities, and services of the association.
- B) Unless otherwise stated in the Articles of Incorporation or in these by-laws, and in addition to the foregoing rights and privileges, every member in good standing of this association shall have the following rights:
 - 1) To vote at all elections of directors or trustees, either in person or by a representative authorized to act by written proxy;
 - 2) To be eligible to any elective or appointive office of the association;
 - 3) To participate and vote on all matters brought before any meeting or deliberation of the members of the association;
 - 4) To use, enjoy, benefit from, or take advantage of all facilities and services of the association.
- C) The Board of Directors has the right to levy fines for violations of Article II Sections 4 of the bylaws.

SECTION 4. Duties of Membership-

Every member of this association shall have the following duties.

- A) To Pay his/her membership fee, association dues, special assessments, and such other fees which may be levied on him/her by the association;
- B) To participate in important activities or social affairs of the association as may be determined by the board of directors or trustees;
- C) To attend all meetings, assembly, and seminars as may be called by the association, the board of directors or trustees or its committees;
- D) To Maintain Property (Lot) in a well-groomed manner. Lot must be maintained, grass cut and no trash lying around the lot.
- E) Members shall be responsible for trash/refuse removal/pick-up.
- F) To obey and comply with this by-laws and such other rules and regulation as may be promulgated by the board of directors or trustees and approved by the majority of the members.
- G) Transfer of ownership for record keeping and billing of OPOA Fees (\$50.00 per Lot)
- H) Renting of property shall comply with HUD and County requirements.

P.O. Box 82 Weidman, Michigan 48893 989-644-8777 Email: lakeojibwa20@gmail.com Web Site: http://www.myopoa.com

- I) Tiny house are allowed 400 SQ ft min. Must have utilities (electric, water and sewer and gas/propane if needed).
- J) Mobile house or modular house are allowed, must be 5 years or newer and comply with all state and county ordinances for set up (permits, setback and utilities Miss Dig are required).
- K) No Hunting on OPOA property per Building and use restrictions.
- L) No Farm animals allowed (chickens, pigs etc).
- M) No Winter camping allowed (Nov 1st to May 1st) Travel trailers, 5th wheels, popups;
- N) No leaving boats tied up at the docks.
- O) ATV's are allowed and must follow all rules of the road and DNR requirements for use as well as remain on assigned trails.
- P) Office rental is available to members in good standing.
- Q) Construction of sheds, garages pole barns, deck, porches, and fences are subject to approval of the OPOA and County.
- R) The installation and maintenance of a culvert under a driveway is the property owners responsibly.
- S) Construction of buildings must be approved by the architectural committee and county, where permits were required (Sheds, Pole Barns, Garage, Porches/decks etc...).
- T) No Parking or leaving a vehicle/trailer on the right of way.
- U) No more than 3 dogs allowed, must be kept on a leash or fenced in area.
- V) No pets allowed on or in the beach area.
- W) Only authorized vehicles are permitted on the airstrip at any time.
- X) There is to be no unauthorized pedestrian traffic on the airstrip at any time.
- Y) There shall be no harvesting of trees/timber from OPOA park areas without board authorization.
- Z) The burning of toxic materials, such as plastic of any kind, tires, diapers, oil, etc is forbidden.

SECTION 5. Delinquent Member

Unless otherwise provided in the by-laws, a member who has failed to pay three (3) cumulative annual dues or membership fees, or other charges assessment despite demands by the association, or has repeatedly violated the association's by-laws and/or declared policies, may be declared delinquent by the Board of Directors in the accordance with the procedure in the succeeding section.

SECTION 6. Procedure in Declaring a Member Delinquent

- A) **A.** The board or a committee assigned by the Board shall observe the following procedures in declaring a member delinquent or not in good standing:
- B) The Board or the Committee shall determine whether a member (1) failed to pay at least three (3) cumulative annual dues, fees or other charges based on the report of the treasurer or as reflected in the association's financial records, or (2) repeatedly or grossly

P.O. Box 82 Weidman, Michigan 48893 989-644-8777 Email: lakeojibwa20@gmail.com Web Site: http://www.myopoa.com

- violated the by-laws or policies of the association as reflected in the book of records of the association.
- C) The President or the designated officer of the association shall forthwith notify the said member in writing of the violation and require him/her to explain in writing, within (15) days from receipt of notice, why he should not be declared delinquent.
- D) After the lapse of fifteen (15) days, with or without a written explanation, the President of the designated officer shall submit a matter to the Board or Committee for hearing and deliberation.
- E) Thereafter, the member may be declared delinquent by the majority vote of all the members of the Board.

SECTION 7. Sanctions for a Delinquent Member

All the rights and privileges of a member as provided in Section 3 is suspended upon the declaration of the delinquency by the Board and other provisions as stated in the Covenant.

SECTION 8. Reinstatement of a Delinquent Member

- A) The board shall, by majority vote, reinstate the membership of the delinquent member, provided that unpaid dues, fees or charges are paid or the sanctions imposed are satisfied.
- B) Nothing in this Rules shall prevent the association from imposing other sanctions against the delinquent member in accordance with the by-laws.

ARTICLE III – MEETINGS

SECTION 1. ANNUAL MEETING

- A) The annual meeting of the members shall be held at some convenient meeting place at the OPOA Community Building on the second Saturday in the month of August or such day as determined by the vote of the members at the preceding annual meeting or by the Board of Directors and at such hour as is likewise determined for the purpose of electing directors and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting.
- B) If the election of directors shall not be held on the day designated herein the Board of Directors shall cause the elections to be held at a special meeting of the Members as soon thereafter as conveniently may be.
- C) The President of the Board of Directors shall preside at the first annual meeting, with the future Presiding officer of each Annual Meeting to be chosen by the members present at one meeting for the next meeting.

SECTION 2. SPECIAL MEETINGS

A Special Meeting of the Members may be called by the President, the Board of Directors or by not less than (1/10th) of the members having voting rights.

SECTION 3. NOTICE OF MEETINGS

A) Written or printed notice stating the place, day, and hour of any meeting of the members shall be delivered either personally, by mail or email. To each member entitled to vote at such meeting not less than (14) days and not more then (30) days before the date of the

P.O. Box 82 Weidman, Michigan 48893 989-644-8777 Email: lakeojibwa20@gmail.com Web Site: http://www.myopoa.com

meeting. In case of a special meeting or when required by statute or by these Bylaws, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called shall be stated in the notice.

B) If mailed, the notice of a meeting shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at his/hers address as it appears on the records of OPOA with postage thereon prepaid.

SECTION 4. QUORUM

- A) A quorum of any meeting of members shall be based on the rule of one (1) vote per property lot owned and be not less than ten percent (10%) of the lot represented in good standing, either present or voting by proxy or by absentee ballot. If the quorum is not present at any meeting of the members, a majority of the members present may adjourn the meeting and schedule another meeting.
- B) The act of a majority of the members, as described herein, at which a quorum is present, shall be the act of all the members.

SECTION 5. CONDUCT OF MEETING

All meetings of members shall be conducted according to the book Roberts Rules of Order.

SECTION 6. PROXIES

- A) At any meeting of the members a member entitled to vote may do so by proxy executed in writing by the member or his/her duly authorized proxy (a member in good standing).
- B) Such proxies may be sent to the Associations P.O. Box or to any other member entitled to vote.
- C) Proxies must be a PERSON in good standing. Proxies are valid for only one (1) year

SECTION 7. VOTE BY MAIL

When directors are to be elected or in case of any question to be decided by vote of the members, such election may be conducted by mail in such a manner as the Board of Directors shall determine. Or the majority of returned ballots from members in good standing.

SECTION 8. VOTE BY ABSENTEE BALLOT

At any meeting of members a member entitled to vote may do so by Absentee Ballot which shall be included with the Notice of Meeting mailed to the member in advance of the meeting.

ARTICLE IV – BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. GENERAL POWERS

The affairs of OPOA as set forth by Ojibwa Recreation Area Building and Use Restrictions shall be managed by its Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. NUMBER AND TENURE IN OFFICE

A) Directors must be a member of OPOA. There shall be a minimum of (7) not to exceed nine (9) directors elected by the vote of the members of OPOA.

P.O. Box 82 Weidman, Michigan 48893 989-644-8777 Email: lakeojibwa20@gmail.com Web Site: http://www.myopoa.com

- B) Each elected Director shall hold office for a term of three (3) years with one-third (1/3rd) of the Board to be elected for a term of three (3) years every year, it being the intent to provide for a staggered three (3) year term for all Directors. The three (3) candidates receiving the largest number of votes at the annual meeting shall replace the three (3) outgoing Directors for the three year term.
- C) The Director appointed to the office of President can only serve one (1) term of three (3) years. When the President has completed his/hers term of office
- D) He/she cannot be reappointed President for three (3) years unless deemed otherwise necessary by the Board of Director.

SECTION 3. NOMINATIONS

- A) Nominations for the election to the Board of Directors shall be made by a Nominating Committee.
- B) The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a member of the Board of Directors, and two (2) or more members of OPOA.
- C) The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the President of the Board of Directors prior to each Annual Meeting of the members to serve from the close of such Annual Meeting until the close of the next Annual Meeting and such appointment shall be announced at each meeting.
- D) The Nominating Committee shall make as many nomination for election to the Board of Director as its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled.
- E) Such nominations must be made from among members in good standing.
- F) Nominations may also be made from the floor at the Annual Meeting.

SECTION 4. REGULAR MEETINGS

- A) A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held without other notice then this bylaw immediately after and at the same place as the Annual Meeting of Members.
- B) The Board of Directors may provide by resolution the time and place for the holding of additional regular meeting of the Board of Directors without other notice than such resolution.

SECTION 5. SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meeting of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the President or by any three (3) Board of Directors.

SECTION 6. NOTICE

Notice of any special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given at least two (2) days previously thereto by written notice delivered personally, by mail or email in reasonable time to reach the Directors at the address shown on the records of OPOA or by verbal notice given to each Director personally at least two (2) days previously.

P.O. Box 82 Weidman, Michigan 48893 989-644-8777 Email: lakeojibwa20@gmail.com Web Site: http://www.myopoa.com

SECTION 7 REMOVAL OF A DIRECTOR

- A) Any Director may be removed by a two-thirds (2/3rd) vote of the members of OPOA, such action to be initiated by petition signed by at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the voting members.
- B) Any director may also be removed by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the entire Board of Directors, minus the director at issue, for malfeasance consisting of either violation of the Association Bylaws, or violation of fiduciary duties towards the association.
- C) In the previous event the Board of Directors must maintain a record of the purported malfeasance and offer the offending Director a chance to respond to the charges in front of the Board to present his or her own corresponding evidence and be so recorded.

SECTION 8. QUORUM

A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors; but if less than a majority of the Directors are present at said meeting, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

SECTION 9. MANNER OF ACTING

The act of majority of directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of greater number is required by law or by these bylaws.

SECTION 10. VACANCIES

Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors shall be filled by the Board of Directors for the time remaining until the next Annual Meeting of Members, at which time the director shall be elected to fill the unexpired term or his/her predecessor in office for the unexpired portion of the term.

SECTION 11. COMPENSATION

Directors shall be compensated as follows: President up to \$500 per year, Treasurer up to \$1200 per year, Secretary up to \$500 per year. All other directors as such shall not receive any stated salaries for their service, but nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any directors from serving in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefore.

ARTICLE V – OFFICERS

SECTION 1. ENUMERATION OF OFFICE AND QUALIFICATION

- A) The officers of OPOA shall be a President, Vice-Presidents, a Secretary and a Treasurer, and other officers as the Board may from time by resolution create. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person except the office of the President and Secretary.
- B) The officers of OPOA shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the regular Annual meeting following the annual Meeting of Members. If the election of officers

P.O. Box 82 Weidman, Michigan 48893 989-644-8777 Email: lakeojibwa20@gmail.com Web Site: http://www.myopoa.com

shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. New offices may be created and filled at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Each officer shall hold office until his/her successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified.

SECTION 2. REMOVAL

Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of OPOA would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the officer so removed.

SECTION 3. PRESIDENT

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors; shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board be carried out; shall sign all leases, mortgages, deeds and other written instruments and shall cosign all checks and promissory notes; and in general he/she shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

SECTION 4. VICE-PRESIDENT

The Vice-president shall act in place of the President in the event of his absence, inability or refusal to act and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required of him/her by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 5. SECRETARY

The Secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the members; keep the corporate seal of OPOA and affix it on all papers requiring said seal; serve notice of meetings of the Board and of the members by mail; keep appropriate current records showing the members of OPOA together with their addresses, and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 6. TREASURER

The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank account all moneys of OPOA and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors; shall sign all checks and promissory notes of OPOA; keep proper books of account; cause an annual audit of OPOA books to be made by the Treasurer and the three (3) Trustees at the completion of each fiscal year and shall prepare an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the membership at its regular Annual meeting and deliver a copy to each of its members.

SECTION 7. TRUSTEE

A) There shall be three (3) Trustees chosen from the Board of Directors at the Annual Meeting following the Meeting of Members. If the election of Trustee shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. New trustees may be created and filled at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Each Trustee

P.O. Box 82 Weidman, Michigan 48893 989-644-8777 Email: lakeojibwa20@gmail.com Web Site: http://www.myopoa.com

shall hold office until his/her successor shall have been duly elected and shall have been qualified.

B) The duties of the Trustees are to perform, along with the Treasurer, a quarterly reconciliation of all bank and financial accounts of OPOA. The Trustee and Treasurer shall perform and prepare an annual audit of all OPOA bank and financial accounts and present said audit to the membership at the Annual OPOA meeting.

ARTICLE VI – ASSESSMENTS

SECTION 1. PURPOSE OF ASSESSMENTS

The Assessments levied by OPOA as set forth by the OPOA Building and Use Restrictions, shall be used exclusively for the purpose of promoting the recreation, health, safety and welfare of the residents of OPOA and in particular for the improvement and maintenance of property, services and facilities devoted to this purpose and related to the use and enjoyment of common properties, including, but not limited to, the payment of taxes and insurance thereon and repair, replacement and additions thereto, for the cost of labor, equipment, materials, management and supervision thereof.

SECTION 2. BASIS AND AMOUNT OF ASSESSMENT

- A) The Annual Assessment shall be evaluated by the Board of Directors and recommend possible revisions to the membership at the annual meeting, based on future projects and needs for OPOA.
- B) As of 2021 Assessments are \$150.00 per lot, per annual Meeting of 2021 67% of all members voted to increase.

SECTION 3. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

The Board of Directors shall have the authority to levy special assessment in an amount not to exceed in any one year fifty percent (50%) of the Annual Assessment on each lot. Such Special Assessment must be for a stated specific purpose connected with regular or contingency maintenance. Any special assessment in an amount greater than fifty percent (50%) must be voted on by the members, requiring a majority of the members voting on the issue. In case of a ballot by mail, the required majority shall be fifty percent (50%) or more of those who return their vote.

SECTION 4. DATE OF ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS

The Annual Assessments provided herein shall be due on April 1. Buyers of lots sold by OPOA shall apply at the time of closing with the amount pro-rated for that fiscal year.

SECTION 5. DUTIES OF THE BOARD REGARDING ASSESSMENTS

The Board of Directors shall direct the Treasurer to draw up a roster of the lots and assessments applicable thereto, such roster to be kept in the office of OPOA and to be open to inspection by any owner/member. Written notice of the Assessment shall thereupon be sent to every owner subject thereto.

P.O. Box 82 Weidman, Michigan 48893 989-644-8777 Email: lakeojibwa20@gmail.com Web Site: http://www.myopoa.com

SECTION 6. EFFECT OF NON-PAYMENT OF ASSESSMENT

- A) Any Annual Assessment not paid by May 1 shall become delinquent and shall be subject to a twenty-five dollar (\$25.00) Late Fee and cost of collection as hereafter provided, thereupon becoming a continuing lien on the property.
- B) After a sixty (60) day period (June 1) OPOA may bring action at law against the Member personally obligated to pay the same. There shall be added to such assessment, the delinquent fee and cost of preparing and filing complaint in such action and in the event that judgment is obtained, such judgment shall include the total amount as provided.
- C) In the event said Assessment is delinquent, voting privileges for owners of such lots will automatically be suspended and shall remain suspended until said Assessments and all fees and expenses have been paid in full.

SECTION 7. SPECIAL ASSESSMENT NOT PAID

ANY Special Assessment not paid in full within one (1) year after due date shall be subject to a lien placed on said property including all expenses to process said lien.

ARTICLE VII – PROPERTY RIGHTS IN COMMON PROPERTIES

SECTION 1. DEFINITION

"Common Property" as used in these bylaws shall mean and refer to those areas of land shown on any recorded plot developed by or its successors or assigns, or OPOA and intended to be devoted to the common use and enjoyment of the lot owners of OPOA and any properties acquired by OPOA in its name by gift or by purchase.

SECTION 2. MEMBERS EASEMENT OF ENJOYMENT

Every Member shall have a right and easement of enjoyment in and the common property and such easement shall be appurtenant to and shall pass with the title of every lot.

SECTION 3. PLAT RESTRICTIONS

- 1) Plat1- Construction must be approved by the OPOA and the County. Permanent house construction only no mobile home per B&UR.
- 2) Plat 2- Construction must be approved by the OPOA and the County. Permanent home construction only no mobile homes per B&UR.
- 3) Plat 3- Construction must be approved by the OPOA and the County.
- 4) Plat 4-Construction must be approved by the OPOA and the County.
- 5) Plat 5-Construction must be approved by the OPOA and the County.
- 6) Plat 6-Construction must be approved by the OPOA and the County.
- 7) Plat 7-Construction must be approved by the OPOA and the County.

P.O. Box 82 Weidman, Michigan 48893 989-644-8777 Email: lakeojibwa20@gmail.com Web Site: http://www.myopoa.com

ARTICLE VIII – COMMITTEES

SECTION 1. COMMITTEES

The President of the Board of Directors shall designate such Committees as he believes best to carry out the purpose of OPOA. All Committee Chairman will be appointed by the President and must be a member of the Board of Directors. The Chairman shall select the members of his/her committee who must be members of OPOA.

SECTION 2. OUORUM

Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors designating a Committee, a majority of the whole committee shall constitute a quorum and the act of majority of the members present at a meeting is at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Committee.

SECTION 3. VACANCIES

Vacancies in the membership of any Committee may be filled by appointments made in the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointments.

SECTION 4. RULES

Each Committee may adopt rules for its own government not inconsistent with these bylaws or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IX – AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS

These By-laws may be altered, amended or repealed and new By-Laws may be adopted by a majority of Member present in person or voting by proxy or by absentee ballot at any Annual Meeting of OPOA or the majority of Board Members with this being on the published agenda of such meeting or at any Special Meeting of OPOA called for that purpose. In case of a ballot by mail, there is required a majority of those members who return their ballots.

ARTICLE X - LEGAL ACTION

The Board of Directors of OPOA shall have the power to enforce all building and Use Restrictions of OPOA as provided in its Building and Use Restrictions Documents.

ARTICLE XI – DISSOLUTION

The Association may be dissolved only with the assent given by two thirds (2/3) of the voting Members eligible to vote under Article III, Section 2. Written notice of a proposal to dissolve, setting forth the reasons therefore and the disposition to be made of the assets (in accordance with Article III herein), shall be mailed to every Member at least ninety (90) days in advance of any such action taken.

P.O. Box 82 Weidman, Michigan 48893 989-644-8777 Email: lakeojibwa20@gmail.com Web Site: http://www.myopoa.com

ARTICLE XII – DISPOSITION OF ASSETS UPON DISSOLUTION

Upon dissolution of the Association, the assets, both real and personal, of the association, shall be dedicated to an appropriate public agency or utility to be devoted to purposes, the same as those to which they were devoted to by the Association. In the event that such dedication is refused, such assets shall be granted, conveyed, and assigned to any non-profit corporation, association, trust or other organization to be devoted to purposes, as nearly as practicable, the same as those to which they were required to devoted by the Association.

ARTICLE XIII - EFFECTIVE DATE OF BYLAWS

These Amended and Restated Bylaws have been approved and implemented by vote of the Board of Directors and/or by a majority vote of the Membership at the Annual OPOA Members meeting.